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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (if known) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

Lower Louviers is a stuccoed stone house that is approached from
the north side. This side has two stories with a five bay facade.:

The three center _bays project sllghtly from ‘the main body of the house

—

above the entrance door. On either side of this door are two semi~
circular blind niches with semi~circular arched heads. Originally a
bronze Venus and Adonis stood here. Above these are two round topped
casement windows of identical proportions. On top of the main door
is an elliptical transom with radiating muntins and on either side of
the door are side lights with curved intersecting muntins.

The three storiedrgard mfacade faces south over a steep wooded
bank fo thé/BrandyW1ne. The central;bay is .a 45° projection. The
narrow' two story'portlco conforms to the shape of the facade. There
is a handsome Chinese style ra111ng. Surmounting the portico is a
paneled balustrade follow1ng the full length of the facade. The re~
construction of this porch in 1935 was based on the two columns which
remaln of the orlglnal. These have ionic caps with fluted blocks undef
the caps and square columns below. Behind the portico is a 45° bay
which forms one side of a central parlour. Either side of the case-

ment door on the angled sides are single casement sash. The end gables
of the original house have lunettes.

| Originally the dining room was on the northwest end of the house

with the kitchen in the basement which is partly above grade on the
‘garden side. 1In 1935 a kitchen wing was added to the other end of the
House plus & gated wall and gardde.  Both kitchen and garage imitate
the style of the Black Gates Houses at the entrance to the property.
Thé housé .was not too modified in the 1935 change. The ‘east chimney,
one of the two origlnal chimneys that opened on to the central parlor,
was removed to insért an elevator. The chimneys were of brick and
independent of the house in an entirely self-supporting manner. The
entrance hall is essentially the same with a handsome stair rising
from the right of the entrance. The stair brackets are of cast lead
in light scroll design. The newel and corner balusters are of metal,
resembling wood turnings. The second floor plan approximates the
ground. The third floor was enlarged in 1935 by a shed dormer on the
south side that is almost invisible.

None of the original woolen mills still stand, nor does the row
of "six frame dwelling houses that sat further back in the woods,
originally known as "Chicken Alley." Charles Bank, another row of
workers' houses is gone. But '"Duck Street,'" now called "Chicken
Alley," still stands close to Lower Louviers, showing the close
proximity of the”mill owner' 's home to that of his Workers. This _Tow
addition on the west end. The five porched. doorways st111 stand
shoy 1n the entrances of the orlglnal houses. The long even roof of
the 19th century is now raised in the center indicating where the
orlglnal house stood when the land was bought in 1802 from Pierre

Bauduy.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Lower Louviers is significant as a handsome example of .early

federal architecture and as one_ of “the first houses built for the

juPont family on the Brandywine. Although tﬁere are nwwlgnger the
Louv1ers Woolen Mllls which were once nearby, Chldken Alley ‘stands
as_it did, an excellent example of the 19th century workers' row
house.' The close proximity of workers' and owner's homes to the
mills can be seen here as in other mill areas of the early 19th
century Brandywine. Louviers is also indicative of that period's
rise and fall in the textile industry. Stimulated by larger markets
and more technical skills fifteen woolen mills were built in Delawarg
between 1809 and 1825. But lack of raw materlals, skllledwggbor,
hlgh tarlffs, and the natural “disasters of floods and fires brought
fallgxe. All of these mills were closed by 1835, except two. The
duPont Woolen Mill was one of these two. Only the financial help of
the successful powder works across the river saved the duPont textils
interests.  Henry and Alfred duPont ,assumed ,Charl ! debts Jin 5856
and the mills became used for manufacture of metal powder kegs in
.1865, flrst to Lessees then by the Du Pont Company, . 1n 1885. The

10
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razed. All that is left of the original 1ndu§;£1a1 compleg is the
owner's home, "Lower Louv1ers," and the former workers' row "Chicken
Alley." T
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There was support and participation from the beginning from the
powder side of the family, Eleuthere Irenee duPont, to the textile
branch of Victor. Their father, Pierre Samuel, introduced merino
rams to the United States in 1801. The young textile industry
suffered from lack of raw materials especially that needed to produce¢
fine quality wool. Don Pedro, the famous ram inported from Spain in
1805, assured the duPonts the best flock in the country. E. I. duPont
envisioned an industrial community that could produce cloth and
leather as well as gunpowder. He also wanted to provide a livelihood
for his brother Victor who had had business failure as well as per-
suade Victor to live nearby. A partnership was formed between the
two brothers and Bauduy and Duplanty to form a woolen factory. This
was called Louviers, after a wool yarn center in France between
Rouen and Paris. Some two hundred acres of land had been bought
from Bauduy on the east bank in 1802. The buildings were built here
between 1808 and 1811 Victor and his family moved into Lower
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American Watchman, March 30, 1816, page 2.
Ibid., December 7, 1813, page e.
duPont, Charles I., Letter Books, Apce551on 501, Eleutherian

Mills, Hagley Library, Greenville,

Delaware.

duPont, Mme. Victor, "Our Transplantation to America," typed
copy of a manuscript written in 1826-1833 Bleutherlan Mllls
Library, Greenville, Delaware.
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8. SIGNIFICANCE (cont'd.)

Louviers in 1811 and Victor's son, Charles, began working in the mills
in 1813. When the original partnership failed, Charles entered with
his father to run the Mills in 1815. Most of the management was in
Charles' hands as Victor was more preoccupied with politics, becoming
among other things, a State Senator. This became complete on Victor's
death in 1827.

E. I. duPont oversaw the building of Victor's house. Family
tradittor~§3ys that the plans were submitted to Thomas Jefferson who
commented with approval on the south portico and the use of natural
gravity to supply the house with water from a nearby spring. The
colonnaded south side does have a Southern tone, probably influenced by
Victor's stay as Consul from France in the 1790's in Charleston, South
Carolina. The house still stands much as it did when Victor and his
family moved in. Admiral Samuel Francis duPont lived there before he
moved "up the hill" to Upper Louviers. Charles, of course, ran the
mills from there and later it was the home of Eugene duPont, Sr., the
fourth head of the family powder works. Still later it was the home of
H. Belin duPont, brother of three of the Du Pont Company's heads--
Pierre S., Irenee, and Lammot duPont. For awhile Louviers was abandoned|
and boarded up until W, W. Laird, a member of the duPont family took
over the house in 1935, But essentially the house was kept the same
observant of a family heritage.
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Boundary Description

Beginning at a monument at the end of a stone wall near the South corner of -
the property of St. Joseph Paper Company ("Upper Louviers"), N 36° 23' 10" E,
18.00 feet to a drill hole in the top of the wall. Thence N 45° 32' 30" W,
990.47 feet to a stone monument passing through two stone monuments and an
X-marked rock. Thence N 22° 43' 10" E, 307.71 feet to a stone monument, and

N 67° 39' 10" W, 1292.92 feet to a concrete monument in a bridge abutment on
the Eastern bank of Brandywine Creek, passing through two concrete monuments
and a spike in a macadan road. Thence 143.65 feet further on the same line to
the centerline of Brandywine Creek, thence downstream as follows: S 00 26' 30"
W, 398.48 feet; S 23° 04' 30" W, 110.38 feet; South 379.86 feet; S 55° 14' 30"
E, 410.26 feet; S 56° 30' 40" E, 406.99 feet; S 580 11' 10" E, 648.93 feet;

S 64° 49' 30" E, 247.84 feet; thence to a point S 37° 08' 00" W, 535.92 feet
from the beginning monument. Thence about 540 feet along the centerline of the
Brandywine to a point S 1° 33' 50" W, 516.88 feet from the previous point.
Thence S 69° 32' 15" E, 98.99 feet to an X-marked rock, thence 441.01 feet
along the same line, passing through a concrete monument to a drill hole in the
top of a stone wall. Thence N 20° 27' 45" E, 651.20 feet to a concrete monu-
ment, thence N 37° 37' 10" W, 392.75 feet to a stone monument, and then N 36°
26' 50" W, 262.95 feet to the place of beginning.




